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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Sulgrave Club (Wadsworth House) is located on a triangular lot with itd
main entrance facing southwest on Massachusetts Avenue, and bordered by 18th
Street, and P Street, The building style is eclectic and combines 18th cen-
tury French and English elements in its design. The plan of the house
generally conforms to the triangular shape of the 1ot‘and was designed in
11900 by architect Frederick H. Brooke. The house, which is oriented toward
Massachusetts Avenue, is terminated on both the Dupont Circle and 18th Street
ends by a curved or bowed facade. The structure measures 136 feet across its
composite Massachusetts Avenue facade, 125 feet-ron P Street, and 76 feet on
18th Street.
/The 3-1/2 story house sits on a cyma capped limestone base with a rusti=-
cated vellow brick ground floor. A limestone fret and cyma string course
separates the ground floor from the yellow brick second and third floors. #
The ground floor central facade bay on Massachusetts Avenue was originally
a carriage entrance through to P Street. The original entrance passed through
a segmental brick voussoir arch with an acanthus scroll key. This entrance
was filled in and a porch or stoop added in 1932. The present entrance is a
result of remodeling in 1952, It consists of a limestone stoop, eight glazed
French door panels, an iron scroll-console and canopy marquise.
The predominately double-hung ground floor windows have block sills and
brick voussoirs. The second story (piano nobile) windows are double-hung
with limestone fillet sills, panel architraves and scroll consoles flanking
plain friezes and supporting corona overhangs. The bows have Louis XVI
French doors separated from their transoms by ogee bars. Each bay of the
second floor bows has decorative wrought-iron balconies on scroll consoles.
The Louis XVI east windows (ballroom) are higher from the ground and lack
balconies. The Palladian window over the entrance consists of dado panels
with scroll block supporting the fluted Ionic columns and pilasters and an
Ionic pulvinated entablature broken by a shell arch flanked by balustrade
panels. The third floor has limestone, double crossette, double-hung windows
except for the casement windows in the bows, the oval occuli at each corner
of the building facade extensions, and the plain limestone architrave of
those openings above the Palladian window.
The roof rises as a slate-covered mansard with its top built up. The lime-
stone building entablature consists of a bead and reel architrave, plain
frieze and dentil and egg and dart courses supporting a corona overhang
capped by an urn balustrade with panel blocks. The fourth floor dormers are
hidden behind the continuous roof balustrade, {/
The interior of the house is eclectic and although it has been somewhat
modified, much of the original detailing remains./ The carriage entrance is
now the ground floor entrance hall, On the east axis is found the reception
room followed by the dining room. On the west entrance hall axis is a
pentagonal stair hall (inspired by 17th century English designs) followed by
the original oval library.

The stair ascends a single flight to the trapezoidal piano nobile living
hall with dining room directly opposite, the oval salon to the west and the
ballroom to the east. The dining room has a glyph cove ceiling withacanthus
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The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Sulgrave Club (Wads-
worth House) a Category II Landmark of importance which contributes signi-
ficantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of
Columbia, Designed in 1900 by architect Frederick Brooke, this mansion,
with its 18th century French and English elements, mirrors the eclecticism
of the period. Built primarily for entertaining by Herbert Wadsworth of
Geneseo, New York, the mansion was one of several palaces located on Dupont
Circle at the turn of the century. The house served briefly as headquarters
for the American Red Cross. It now houses the Sulgrave Club, a women's club
similar in organization to the Colony Club in New York.

The triangle of land now occupied by the Sulgrave Club was owned by the
Church of the Holy Cross in 1862. The land was next owned by Mrs. Kate D.
Van Wyck in 1889. 1In 1896 the land was purchased by the Herbert Wadsworths
of Geneseo, New York. The house was built by Wadsworth,

The architect of the Wadsworth House was Frederick H., Brooke (1879-1961)
who also designed the District of Columbia War Memorial in West Potomac Park
and was the American architect of the U.S. Embassy in Britain. fThe house
was designed primarily for entertaining and receptions and, among other
features, contained a large ballroom. During Theodore Roosevelt's adminis-
tration, the house was a prominent center for Washington social activities.l

In February of 1917 the Wadsworth turned the house over to the District
of Columbia Chapter of the American Red Cross. This was the first private
residence in the U.S. to be given by its owner for use in Red Cross work.,

In 1932 the house was purchased by Miss Mabel Boardman for $125,000 for
use as a private women's club. Miss Boardman who lived on P Street across
from the Wadsworth house brought together a group of friends and neighbors
to both found the club and to prevent the property from falling into un-
desirable hands. Organized along the lines of the Colony Club of New York
and the Chilton Club of Boston, the club was planned to be a center of
social, artistic, literary and musical activities in the city. Sulgrave
Manor, the ancestral home of George Washington, was chosen as an appropriate
name for the club and permission to use the Washington coat-~of-arms for the
Club's seal was obtained. The house still serves as the Sulgrave Club,




Info?mation compiled by the Commission of Fine Arts, particularly the
architectural description. Information now on file at the Commission of
Fine Arts.

Information from the files of the Washington Collection of the D.C., Public
Library,

Information from the Sulgrave Club pamphlet: '"Sulgrave Club - 1932-1957,"

'bbituariesﬂ Progressive Architecture, vol. 42, February 1961.
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7. Description ~ Sulgrave Club

corners, /‘Uhe oval salon is decorated in a late 18th century English style.

The ballroom ceiling is coved and divided into recessed beamed panels having
crosseted insets, those of the cove decorated with escutcheons and festoons./
On the third floor are located bedrooms and baths. The original servants

quarters were located on the fourth floor. These rooms have been remodeled
and are used for guest rooms.
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